
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
THURSDAY APRIL 17, 2025 

9:30 A.M. 

The Landing at MIA 
5 Star Conference Center (Everglades Room) 

7415 Corporate Center Drive, Suite H 
Miami, FL 33126 

The public may choose to view the session online via Zoom. Registration is required: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_wjgmIoTtSEu4r3ERRDichg  

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Introductions

2. Public Comment

3. Chairman’s Report

4. Executive Director’s Report

A. Executive Director Update

5. Greater Miami Chamber of Commerce Presentation

6. CSSF Service Code Monitoring Report Presentation

7. Consent Agenda Items

A. Recommendation as to Approval of December 19, 2024 Board
Minutes

8. Executive Committee Update

9. Finance and Efficiency Council Update

A. Information – Financial Report – December, 2024

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_wjgmIoTtSEu4r3ERRDichg


 
 

South Florida Workforce Investment Board dba CareerSource South Florida is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids  
and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers on this document may be reached by  
persons using TTY/TDD equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 
 
"Members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on a specific agenda item, but must register with the agenda 
clerk prior to being heard." 

10. Global Talent and Competitiveness Council Update 

11. Performance Council Update 

12. Action Items 

A. Recommendation as to Approval of a Fiber Optics Training Program 

B. Recommendation as to Approval to Allocate Funding for the Fiber 
Optics Training Program 

C. Recommendation as to Renew External Auditing Firm 

D. Recommendation as to Approval of new Apprenticeship Training 
Programs 

E. Recommendation as to Approval of a Programs Policy (Tentative) 
 

 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  2 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  STRONG WORKFORCE SYSTEM LEADERSHIP 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  National leader in an ROI-focused enterprise 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
N/A 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 

 

NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  3 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: SFWIB CHAIRMAN'S REPORT  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  STRONG WORKFORCE SYSTEM LEADERSHIP 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  National leader in an ROI-focused enterprise 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
N/A 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 

 

NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  4A 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: SFWIB EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  STRONG WORKFORCE SYSTEM LEADERSHIP 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  National leader in an ROI-focused enterprise 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
N/A 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 

 

NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  5 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: COMMUNITY PRESENTATIONS  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A` 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  BUILD DEMAND-DRIVEN SYSTEM W/ EMPLOYER ENGAGEMENT 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Engage employers and seek continuous feedback 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
     
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 
 
NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  5A 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: GREATER MIAMI CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A` 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  STRONG WORKFORCE SYSTEM LEADERSHIP 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Strengthen workforce system  accountability 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Greater Miami Chamber of Commerce will be presenting on the Federal Reserve Bank. 
 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 
 
NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  5B 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: SERVICE CODE MONITORING TOOL  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  STRONG WORKFORCE SYSTEM LEADERSHIP 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Provide technical assistance to service providers 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On January 9, 2025, SFWIB staff breifed the Executive Committee on an issue involving a staff member at one of 
the Career Centers who improperly extended the active participation of over 700 Wagner-Peyser clients. 
 
In response, SFWIB staff conducted an investigation along with the service provider which ultimately lead to the 
dismissal of said individual and their immediate supervisor. In an effort to prevent future occurrences, the service 
provider pledged to implement enhanced leadership oversight and allocate additional resources to ensure 
consistency across all locations. 
 
CareerSource South Florida (CSSF) has implemented a Service Code Monitoring Report to enhance oversight and 
ensure compliance with service activity regulations. The purpose of this report is to identify service codes that may 
be improperly used to extend participant’s participation in the system without meaningful engagement or progress 
toward employment outcomes. By analyzing service utilization trends, CSSF aims to uphold program integrity, 
prevent potential compliance risks, and ensure that participants receive services aligned with WIOA objectives. 
 
Following a recent analysis of service code activities from July 1, 2024 to April 1, 2025 across the CareerSource 
South Florida (CSSF) network, CSSF staff have identified significant concerns related to service utilization, 
regulatory compliance, and cost efficiency. This review highlights potential areas of concern, including excessive 
gaps between participation and last service, overuse of service codes, and questionable cost practices that may 
require corrective action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

KEY FINDINGS 
 
1. Excessive Delays in Service Delivery 
 

a. The statewide benchmark for average days between participation and last service is 41 days. 
 

b. CSSF centers exceeded this benchmark by an average of 146.61 days, with some centers exceeding it 
by over 700%. 

 
c. Centers with the longest service gaps: 

 
i. Homestead Center: 346.36 days (739% over the state average) 

ii. Perrine Center: 256.48 days (521% over the state average) 
iii. Northside Center: 238.85 days (478% over the state average) 
iv. Carol City Center: 141.1 days (242% over the state average) 

 
2. Questionable Service Code Utilization & Cost Concerns 
 

a. Several centers reported high activity counts without corresponding improvements in employment 
outcomes. 

 
b. Little Havana Center (7,315 activities), Perrine Center (7,288 activities), and Hialeah Downtown Center 

(4,308 activities) account for a disproportionate share of total service activities. 
 
c. These trends suggest potential overuse of service codes to extend participant’s participation without 

meaningful engagement or employment. 
 
3. Potential Regulatory Compliance and Questionable Costs 
 

a. Centers with high service activity volumes without corresponding employment outcomes may trigger 
regulatory audits and raise cost allowable concerns. Centers that require further scrutiny include: 

 
i. Little Havana Center: 21.84% of total activities 

ii. Perrine Center: 21.76% of total activities 
iii. Hialeah Downtown Center: 12.86% of total activities 
iv. West Dade Center: 12.17% of total activities 

 
b. A high number of service activities with extended participation durations may suggest: 

 
i. Service code overuse to maintain participant engagement without progress toward 

employment. 
ii. Cost inefficiencies due to excessive billing for services that do not contribute to job placement. 

iii. Possible regulatory scrutiny due to non-compliance with WIOA and Uniform Guidance cost 
principles. 

 
4. Regulatory Compliance Risks 
 

a. Service codes must align with WIOA guidelines and cost principles under federal and state workforce 
regulations. 

 
b. Excessive service durations without documented job placement progress may trigger audits and raise 

compliance concerns related to cost allowability. 



 
 

 
c. Centers with high activity volumes but prolonged service gaps require immediate review to ensure 

alignment with regulatory expectations. 
 
NEXT STEPS & REQUIRED ACTIONS 
 
To ensure compliance and improve service efficiency, all service providers must: 
 
• Review and adjust service code usage to ensure alignment with WIOA goals. 
 
• Develop strategies to reduce the time between participation and the last service to meet the 41-day benchmark. 
 
• Conduct an internal audit of service codes to identify potential overuse and cost inefficiencies. 
 
• Ensure all service activities are directly linked to participant employment outcomes rather than maintaining 

enrollment without progress. 
 
The CSSF Team is scheduling immediate training for all CSSF provider staff (i.e., career center and youth staff) 
regarding proper documentation for service codes. Additionally, a follow-up meeting will be scheduled to discuss 
necessary corrective actions. Please ensure that your teams are prepared to present a plan for improving service 
efficiency and regulatory compliance. 
 
SFWIB staff will now provide a demonstration of the new Service Code Monitoring Tool. 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A  
 
NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  6 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  APPROVAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  SFWIB Staff recommends to the Board to approve the following items by unanamous 
concensus, as set forth below. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  HIGH ROI THROUGH CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Strengthen workforce system  accountability 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
N/A 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 

 

ATTACHMENT 



 

Minutes Prepared by: Ebony Morgan  
SFWIB Meeting 

February 20, 2025, 9:30am 
Status: DRAFT 

Approval date: TBD 
Page 1 of 6 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD MEETING  
 
DATE:  4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  6A 
 
AGENDA TOPIC: MEETING MINUTES 
 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

DATE/TIME:  February 20, 2025, 9:30am 

LOCATION:    Miami Lakes Educational Center and Technical College 
     5780 N.W. 158th Street, Large Media Room 
     Miami Lakes, FL  33014 

 

Zoom:  https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_wjgmIoTtSEu4r3ERRDichg  

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Vice Chairman del Valle called to order the regular meeting of the 
South Florida Workforce Investment Board at 9:43AM on February 20, 2025.  

ROLL CALL: 25 members; 13 required; 16 present: Quorum  

SFWIB Members Present 
1. Bridges, Jeff (Zoom) 
2. Brown, Clarence 
3. Canales, Dequasia  
4. Chi, Joe 
5. Datorre, Roberto  
6. del Valle, Juan-Carlos, Vice 

Chair 
7. Garza, Eddie (Zoom) 
8. Grice, Sonia  
9. Glean-Jones, Camela (Zoom) 
10. Loynaz, Oscar, MD 
11. Mantilla, Rene' 
12. Palacios, Carol (Zoom) 
13. Perez, Andy (Zoom) 
14. Pintado, Kirenia (Zoom) 
15. Rolle, Andrei 
16. Whitaker, David 

SFWIB Members Absent 
17. Androver, Bernado 
18. Clayton, Lovey  
19. Gazitua, Luis 
20. Piedra, Obdulio 
21. Rod, Denis 

 
 
  
 

SFWIB Members Excused 
22. Brecheisen, Bruce   
23. Ferradaz, Gilda 
24. Gibson, Charles, 

Chair  
25. Scott, Jr., Kenneth  

 
 
 

SFWIB Staff 
1. Beasley, Rick  
2. Bennett, Renee 
3. Morgan, Ebony 
4. Parson, Robert 
5. Perrin, Yian 
6. Petro, Basil 
7. Smith, Robert 
8. Vice, Karlisha 
9. Washington, Jarvis 

 
SFWIB Administration 

10. Gonzalez, Yoandy 
11. McFarland, Casandra 

 
Miami-Dade County 
Attorney’s Office 
 

Gallo, Melissa 

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_wjgmIoTtSEu4r3ERRDichg


 

Minutes Prepared by: Ebony Morgan  
SFWIB Meeting 

February 20, 2025, 9:30am 
Status: DRAFT 

Approval date: TBD 
Page 2 of 6 

Guest Attendees 
1. Alexis, Carl, Youth Co-Op, Inc.  
2. Foxx, Bryan, My IT Future 
3. Gilbert, David, City of Miami 
4. Greene, Starsheema Dr., Miami Lakes Educational Center & Technical College 
5. Grigsby, Christine, Equus Works 
6. Ilcheva, Maria, Florida International University  
7. Perez-Borroto, Connie, Youth Co-Op, Inc.  (Zoom) 
8. Remington, Bob, My IT Future  

As the meeting began, Vice Chairman del Valle, speaking on behalf of the Board, expressed our 
heartfelt gratitude to board member Mr. Rene′ Mantilla, Dr. Starsheema Greene, Director, MLEC 
Technical College, and the Miami Lakes Educational Center staff for hosting today's gathering.  Dr. 
Greene welcomed the group and acknowledged the efforts of the talented culinary students and Chef 
Nunez.  She highlighted some of the many offerings available to students at the facility and thanked 
the members for their contributions to the program's success.    
 
Agenda items are displayed in the order they are discussed.   
 

2. Public Comments 
Public comments should be two minutes or less.   
 

The Executive Office received a Request to Speak Form from Mr. Bryan Foxx of My IT Future. 
He and Mr. Remington participated in the meeting to address any concerns or questions the board 
may have about the previous legal case with New Horizons.  None presented.  

 
Vice Chairman del Valle opened the floor for any additional comments from the public.  None 
were presented.  Item closed.  

 
4A. Executive Directors Report 

 
Vice Chairman del Valle introduced the item; Mr. Beasley provided an overview of the following 
items in the Executive Director’s Report: 

 
• Federal  

o Appropriations – Senate Budget Committee Budget Resolution  
o Appropriations/Continuous Resolutions 

 Nominees for key positions in the U.S. Department of Labor 
• State  



 

Minutes Prepared by: Ebony Morgan  
SFWIB Meeting 

February 20, 2025, 9:30am 
Status: DRAFT 

Approval date: TBD 
Page 3 of 6 

o WIOA 2024-25 Second Quarter Performance Outcomes: Reviewed 
placement and economic benefits to LWDA 23.  

 
No questions or comments were presented.  Item closed. 

 
5. Presentation – SFWIB Annual Training  

 
Vice-Chairman del Valle introduced the item; Mr. Beasley facilitated the required annual board 
training which covered the following topics: 
 

• The state’s workforce board development goals and strategies;  
• The purpose of the LWDB; 
• Roles and responsibilities of the CLEO, fiscal agent, LWDB, LWDB chairperson, and 

LWDB executive director and staff;  
• How the workforce system is funded;  
• Performance requirements;  
• Sunshine law requirements; and  
• Conflict of interest policy. 

 
No further questions or comments were presented.  Item closed. 

 
6. Consent Agenda Items 

 
Vice Chairman del Valle introduced the following consent agenda items for review: 

 
• 6A:  Approval - SFWIB Meeting Minutes – December 19, 2024  
• 6B:  Approval - Acceptance of Additional Workforce System Funds 

 
He inquired whether any member desired to pull an item for additional discussion prior to the 
vote. None of the consent agenda items were selected for deliberation. 
 
No objections were note; consent agenda items are adopted without dissent. 
 
No further questions or comments were presented.  Item closed. 
 

9. SFWIB Global Talent and Competitiveness Council Update 
 
Dr. Loynaz provided an overview of the items recommended for approval during today’s 
GTCC meeting: 



 

Minutes Prepared by: Ebony Morgan  
SFWIB Meeting 

February 20, 2025, 9:30am 
Status: DRAFT 

Approval date: TBD 
Page 4 of 6 

 
• New Training Provider – My IT Future Institute 
• Women in Tech Program with the City of Miami 
• The Purchase of Florida Prepaid College Scholarships 
• WIOA Opportunity Zone On-the-Job (OJT) Waiver 
• Mayor's 2025 Summer Internship Program 
• Board Resolutions – Executive Director Contract Authority 

 
No questions or comments were presented.  Item closed. 

  
10. Performance Council Update  

 
Ms. Canales provided an overview of the items discussed and approved during today’s 
Performance Council meeting.   
 
No questions or comments were presented.  Item closed. 
 

8. SFWIB Finance and Efficiency Council Update 
 
Vice Chairman del Valle provided an overview of the items discussed and the following 
consent agenda items that were recommended for approval during today’s FEC meeting: 
 

• Approval to accept an additional $277,077.57 in Workforce System Funding  
 
The PY 2024-2025 budget adjustment request will be discussed during the “Action Items” 
segment of the agenda.   
 
No questions or comments were presented.  Item closed. 
 

11. Action Items  
 
Vice Chairman del Valle introduced agenda items 11A–11E, allowing CSSF staff to review 
each item with the members and address any questions raised. 

 
11A.  Approval – Accept Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Audit Reports  {Pulled from the agenda} 
11B.  Approval – Renew Contract for External Auditing Firm {Pulled from the agenda} 
 
These items concern the approval of PY 2023-2024 audit results and the recommendation to 
renew the contract with our external auditing firm.  Mr. Beasley explained that the items will 



 

Minutes Prepared by: Ebony Morgan  
SFWIB Meeting 

February 20, 2025, 9:30am 
Status: DRAFT 

Approval date: TBD 
Page 5 of 6 

be pulled from the agenda because the final auditors' report is incomplete, and several 
documents are still being requested from the CSSF Finance team.  

 
Mr. Beasley instructed the auditors to complete all tasks by February 27, 2025. This timeline 
provides sufficient time for a thorough review of the results before they are presented to the 
SFWIB Executive Committee for approval at their regularly scheduled meeting on March 13, 
2025. The Finance and Efficiency Council has been invited to attend the meeting where they 
will hear the presentation, review the documentation, and address any concerns. Since staff 
must submit the audit results to the Clearinghouse by March 30, 2025, it is essential that we 
adhere to the timeline as established.   
 
No further questions or comments were presented.  Item closed. 
 
11C.  Approval – FY 2024-2025 Budget Adjustment  

  
Vice Chairman del Valle introduced the item; Mr. Beasley presented the request to modify the 
FY 2024-2025 SFWIB Budget to allocate additional funding awards totaling $694,527.  
Headquarters (Administration & Program Costs) increased by $416,716.20 and the Training 
budget increased by $277 

 
Motion: by Mr. Rolle to the FY 2024-2025 Budget adjustment.  Mr. Mantilla seconded the 
motion; item is passed without dissent. 
 
No further questions or comments were presented.  Item closed. 

 
Vice Chairman del Valle introduced agenda items 11D–11L, allowing time for members to pull any 
agenda item requiring further discussion.  None of the items were pulled.  Mr. Beasley gave a concise 
overview of each of the following items:   
 

11D:  Approval of a New Training Provider MY IT Future Institute 
11E:  Approval of a Women in Tech Training Program 
11F:  Approval to Purchase and Allocate Florida College Plan Scholarships 
11G. Approval to Submit an OJT Waiver Request 
11H. Approval of the Mayor’s Internship Program 
11I:   Approval to Adopt a Board Resolution 
11J.   Approval of SFWIB Board Leadership 
11K: Approval to Release a Career Center and Youth Request for Proposal 
11L. Approval to Release a RFQ for Workforce Services in the Aviation Industry 

 



 

Minutes Prepared by: Ebony Morgan  
SFWIB Meeting 

February 20, 2025, 9:30am 
Status: DRAFT 

Approval date: TBD 
Page 6 of 6 

[Mr. Renee Mantilla, a possible related party for agenda item 11K, was removed from the room prior to the 
discussion and vote on the proposed item.  There is no contract associated with this item at this time; as such, a 
Conflict of Interest/Related Party Form is not required.] 
 
Motion:  Mr. Chi to approve agenda items 11D – 11L as so presented.  Mr. Rolle seconded 
the motion; item is passed without dissent. 
 
No further questions or comments were presented.  Item closed. 
 

Next Meeting 
  

The next SFWIB meeting is scheduled to take place on April 17, 2025.  The location is to be 
determined.   
 
Notifications will be forwarded to all members in advance of the session.   

 
Being as there were no further questions or concerns, the SFWIB Meeting adjourned at 11:38am.  
 

 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  7 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: SFWIB EXECUTIVE BOARD UPDATE  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  STRONG WORKFORCE SYSTEM LEADERSHIP 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Strengthen workforce system  accountability 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The following items were disccused and/or approved at the March 13 and April 10, 2025 SFWIB Executive Board 
Meetings.  
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 

 

ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  8 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: FINANCE AND EFFICIENCY COUNCIL UPDATE  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  HIGH ROI THROUGH CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Strengthen workforce system  accountability 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
N/A 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 

 

ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  8A 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: FINANCIAL REPORT  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  HIGH ROI THROUGH CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Strengthen workforce system  accountability 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Finance and Efficiency Council's primary goal is to work to ensure that the Board is in good financial 
health, its assets are protected, and its resources are used appropriately and accounted for sufficiently. 
Accordingly, the attached un-audited financial report for the month of February 2025 is being presented 
for review by the Board members. 
 
 
Footnote:  The Urestricted Fund Balance is  $425,631.00   
 
 
Budget Variance Explanations 
 
•  The expenditure rate for Headquarters costs is 64.7 percent. The actual expenditure rate is 

2.3 percent lower than the projected expenditure rate. 
 
• The expenditure rate for Adult Services costs is 50.1 percent. The actual expenditure rate is 

16.9 percent lower than the projected expenditure rate. 
 
• The expenditure rate for Youth Services costs is 51.8 percent. The actual expenditure rate is 

15.2 percent lower than the projected expenditure rate. 
 

 
• The expenditure rate for Other Programs and Project costs is 42 percent. The actual expenditure 

rate is 25 percent lower than the projected expenditure rate. 



 
• .The expenditure rate for Facilities costs is 52.4 percent. The actual expenditure rate is 14.6 

percent lower than the projected expenditure rate.   
 

•  
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENT 



FINANCIAL  
REPORT 

 
 

FOR THE PERIOD OF: 
 
 
 

JULY 1, 2024 THRU FEBRUARY 28, 2025 
(UNAUDITED) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Accompanying Notes to the Financial Report (unaudited) 
For the Period of July 1, 2024 through February 28, 2025 
 
The actual expenditure rate for the eight (8) months of  the new fiscal year appears to be outpacing the 
same period last year overall by approximately 24 percent. 
The projected expenditure rate for eight month period is 67 percent. The actual expenditure rate is 48.4 
percent.  The main driving source of the variance is due to timing issues. 

 

 
Budget Variance Explanations 
 
•     The expenditure rate for Headquarters costs is 64.7 percent. The actual expenditure rate is 2.3  
       percent lower than the projected expenditure rate. 

•     The expenditure rate for Adult Services costs is 50.1 percent. The actual expenditure rate is 16.9     
        percent lower than the projected expenditure rate. 

•     The expenditure rate for Youth Services costs is 51.8 percent. The actual expenditure rate is 15.2  
        percent lower than the projected expenditure rate. 

•     The expenditure rate for Other Programs and Project costs is 42 percent. The actual expenditure  
        rate is 25 percent lower than the projected expenditure rate.  

•     The expenditure rate for Facilities costs is 52.4 percent. The actual expenditure rate is 14.6 percent  
        lower than the projected expenditure rate.   

 



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA 13,224,099$           -$                 1,220,966$     14,445,065$        565,619$             13,975,446$      
TANF 12,869,712$           -$                 200,000$        13,069,712$        8,924,851$          4,144,861$        
FLCommerce 1,901,716$             -$                 736,033$        2,637,749$          908,908$             1,632,841$        
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 15,010,803$           -$                 16,118$          15,026,921$        11,405,904$        3,621,017$        
Other -$                        -$                 150,000$        150,000$             143,620$             6,380$               

Total Revenue 43,006,329$           -$                 2,323,117$     45,329,446$        21,948,901$        23,380,545$      

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 8,449,524$             -$                 938,776$        9,388,300$          6,075,473$          3,312,827$        64.7%
 

Adult Services 12,665,959$           (120,000)$        (17,133)$         12,528,826$        6,272,374$          6,256,453$        50.1%
Youth Services 6,344,148$             (2,445,750)$     -$                3,898,398$          2,018,680$          1,879,718$        51.8%

Set Aside 500,000$                -$                 -$                500,000$             -$                     500,000$           0.0%

Facilities Costs 5,027,808$             -$                 132,800$        5,160,608$          2,706,713$          2,453,894$        52.4%

Training & Support Services 10,018,890$           4,677,131$      (2,127,326)$    12,568,695$        4,336,384$          8,232,311$        
             Allocated Funds 6,018,890$             2,683,940$      356,509$        9,059,339$          4,336,384$          4,722,955$        43.3%
             Set Asides 4,000,000$             1,993,190$      (2,483,835)$    3,509,356$          -$                     3,509,356$        

Other Programs & Projects -$                        (2,111,381)$     3,396,000$     1,284,619$          539,276$             745,343$           42.0%
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                        -$                 300,000$        300,000$             -$                     300,000$           0.0%
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                        (79,491)$          100,000$        20,509$               3,487$                 17,022$             17.0%
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                        -$                 96,000$          96,000$               -$                     96,000$             0.0%
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                        (156,890)$        200,000$        43,110$               39,893$               3,217$               92.5%
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                        (1,875,000)$     2,500,000$     625,000$             495,896$             129,104$           79.3%
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                        -$                 200,000$        200,000$             -$                     200,000$           0.0%

Total Expenditures 43,006,329$           -$                 2,323,117$     45,329,446$        21,948,901$        23,380,545$      48.4%

Balance of Funds Available -$                        -$                 -$                -$                    -$                     -$                   
*see accompanying notes 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

AGENCY SUMMARY

75.9%

3.9%

34.5%

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

68.3%

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

48.4%

 

95.7%



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA 4,801,271$              310,769$         5,112,040$          361,533$              4,750,508$       
TANF -$                     -$                  
FLCommerce -$                     -$                  
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 3,603,342$              3,603,342$          3,603,342$           -$                  
Other -$                     

Total Revenue 8,404,613$              -$                 310,769$         8,715,382$          3,964,874$           4,750,508$       

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 1,617,888$              55,684$           1,673,573$          1,143,996$           529,576$          68.4%
 

Adult Services 2,389,904$              (120,000)$        231,509$         2,501,413$          1,168,432$           1,332,981$       46.7%
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   
 

Facilities Costs 684,976$                 23,576$           708,551$             398,163$              310,388$          56.2%
 

Training & Support Services 3,711,845$              120,000$         -$                 3,831,845$          1,254,283$           2,577,563$       32.7%
             Allocated Funds 2,928,756$              120,000$         3,048,756$          1,254,283$           1,794,474$       41.1%
             Set Asides 783,089$                 783,089$             783,089$          0.0%

Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                     -$                   
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                     -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                     -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                     -$                   

Total Expenditures 8,404,613$              -$                 310,769$         8,715,382$          3,964,874$           4,750,508$       45.5%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

 
100.0%

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

 
7.1%

WIOA ADULT
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

 
 

45.5%



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%
Revenues:

WIOA 3,304,234$              310,769$         3,615,003$          3,615,003$       
TANF -$                     -$                  
FLCommerce -$                     -$                  
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 3,941,994$              3,941,994$          2,728,596$           1,213,398$       
Other -$                     

Total Revenue 7,246,228$              -$                 310,769$         7,556,997$          2,728,596$           4,828,401$       

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 1,394,899$              287,193$         1,682,092$          715,391$              966,701$          42.5%
 

Adult Services 2,062,270$              -$                 -$                 2,062,270$          1,004,049$           1,058,221$       48.7%
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   
 

Facilities Costs 590,568$                 23,576$           614,143$             664,135$              (49,992)$           108.1%
 

Training & Support Services 3,198,491$              -$                 -$                 3,198,491$          345,020$              2,853,471$       10.8%
             Allocated Funds 2,523,333$              2,523,333$          345,020$              2,178,313$       13.7%
             Set Asides 675,158$                 675,158$             675,158$          0.0%

Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                     -$                   
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                     -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                     -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                     -$                   

Total Expenditures 7,246,228$              -$                 310,769$         7,556,997$          2,728,596$           4,828,401$       36.1%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

 
0.0%

WIOA DISLOCATED WORKER
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

 
69.2%

 
 

36.1%



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA 778,754$                 778,754$             778,754$          
TANF -$                     -$                  
FLCommerce -$                     -$                  
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 742,630$                 742,630$             358,696$              383,934$          
Other -$                     

Total Revenue 1,521,384$              -$                 -$                 1,521,384$          358,696$              1,162,688$       

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 292,866$                 292,866$             115,690$              177,177$          39.5%
 

Adult Services 395,971$                 -$                 -$                 395,971$             190,535$              205,437$          48.1%
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   
 

Facilities Costs 123,993$                 123,993$             52,471$                71,521$            42.3%
 

Training & Support Services 708,554$                 -$                 -$                 708,554$             -$                      708,554$          0.0%
             Allocated Funds 566,801$                 566,801$             566,801$          0.0%
             Set Asides 141,753$                 141,753$             141,753$          0.0%

Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                     -$                  
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                     
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                     -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                     -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                     -$                   

Total Expenditures 1,521,384$              -$                 -$                 1,521,384$          358,696$              1,162,688$       23.6%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

 
0.0%

WIOA RAPID RESPONSE
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

 

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

 

 

23.6%

48.3%



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA 4,339,839$     435,769$        4,775,608$         4,775,608$      
TANF -$                    -$                 
FLCommerce -$                    -$                 
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 5,087,362$     5,087,362$         3,742,192$          1,345,170$      
Other -$                    

Total Revenue 9,427,201$     -$                435,769$        9,862,970$         3,742,192$          6,120,778$      

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 1,814,736$     55,684$          1,870,421$         834,672$             1,035,749$      44.6%
 

Adult Services -$               -$                -$                -$                    -$                     -$                  
Youth Services 6,344,148$     (2,445,750)$    -$                3,898,398$         2,018,680$          1,879,718$      51.8%

Set Aside 500,000$        500,000$            500,000$         0.0%
 

Facilities Costs 768,317$        23,576$          791,892$            166,876$             625,016$         21.1%
 

Training & Support Services -$               2,445,750$      356,509$        2,802,259$         721,963$             2,080,296$      25.8%
             Allocated Funds 2,445,750$         356,509$        2,802,259$         721,963$             2,080,296$      25.8%
             Set Asides -$                    -$                  

Other Programs & Projects -$               -$                -$                -$                    -$                     -$                  
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                    -$                  
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                    -$                  
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                    -$                  
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                    -$                  
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                    -$                  
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                    -$                  

 
Total Expenditures 9,427,201$     -$                435,769$        9,862,970$         3,742,192$          6,120,778$      37.9%  

Balance of Funds Available -$               -$                -$                -$                    -$                     -$                 
*see accompanying notes 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

 
0.0%

WIOA YOUTH
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

 
73.6%

 

37.9%

 



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA -$                     
TANF 12,869,712$            200,000$         13,069,712$         8,924,851$           4,144,861$       
FLCommerce -$                     -$                  
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 584,704$                 584,704$              584,704$              -$                  
Other -$                     -$                  

Total Revenue 13,454,416$            -$                 200,000$         13,654,416$         9,509,555$           4,144,861$       

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 2,589,975$              2,589,975$           2,367,605$           222,370$          91.4%
 

Adult Services 7,367,906$              -$                 (466,165)$        6,901,741$           3,681,461$           3,220,279$       53.3%
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   
 

Facilities Costs 1,096,535$              1,096,535$           1,033,546$           62,988$            94.3%
 

Training & Support Services 2,400,000$              1,993,190$       (2,483,835)$     1,909,356$           1,909,356$           (0)$                    100.0%
             Allocated Funds -$                         -$                     1,909,356$           (1,909,356)$       
             Set Asides 2,400,000$              1,993,190$       (2,483,835)$     1,909,356$           1,909,356$       0.0%

Other Programs & Projects -$                         (1,993,190)$     3,150,000$      1,156,810$           517,586$              639,223$          44.7%
        Big Brothers Big Sisters 300,000$         300,000$              300,000$          0.0%
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) (39,745)$          50,000$           10,255$                1,743$                  8,511$              17.0%
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) (78,445)$          100,000$         21,555$                19,946$                1,609$              92.5%
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 (1,875,000)$     2,500,000$      625,000$              495,896$              129,104$          79.3%
        5000 Role Model Scholarships 200,000$         200,000$              200,000$          0.0%

 
Total Expenditures 13,454,416$            -$                 200,000$         13,654,416$         9,509,555$           4,144,861$       69.6%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

68.3%
 

TANF

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

 

 

 

 
100.0%

69.6%



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%
Revenues:

WIOA -$                         163,659$         163,659$             204,086$              55,573$            
TANF -$                     
FLCommerce 96,000$           96,000$               
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 -$                     
Other -$                     

Total Revenue -$                         -$                 259,659$         259,659$             204,086$              55,573$            

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs -$                         163,659$         163,659$             191,932$              (28,273)$           117.3%
 

Adult Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   

 
Facilities Costs -$                     12,154$                (12,154)$            

 
 

Training & Support Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
             Allocated Funds -$                     -$                   
             Set Asides -$                     -$                   

 
Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 96,000$           96,000$               96,000$            0.0%
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                     -$                  
        Apprenticeship Navigators 96,000$           96,000$               96,000$            0.0%
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                     -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                     -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                      

 
Total Expenditures -$                         -$                 259,659$         259,659$             204,086$              55,573$            78.6%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

78.6%

 
 

 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

Layoff Aversion / Apprenticeship Navigator
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

124.7%
 

0.0%



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA -$                    
TANF -$                    
FLCommerce -$                    -$                 
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 -$                    
Other 150,000$        150,000$            143,620$             6,380$             

Total Revenue -$                        -$                150,000$        150,000$            143,620$             6,380$             

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs -$                    16,167$               (16,167)$           
 

Adult Services -$                        -$                -$                    -$                     -$                  
Youth Services -$                        -$                -$                -$                    -$                     -$                  

 
Set Aside -$                    -$                  

 
Facilities Costs -$                    -$                 

 
 

Training & Support Services -$                        118,190$         -$                118,190$            105,763$             12,428$           89.5%
             Allocated Funds 118,190$         118,190$            105,763$             12,428$           89.5%
             Set Asides -$                    -$                  

 
 

Other Programs & Projects -$                        (118,190)$       150,000$        31,810$              21,690$               10,120$           68.2%
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                    -$                  
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) (39,745)$         50,000$          10,255$              1,743$                 8,511$             17.0%
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                    -$                  
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) (78,445)$         100,000$        21,555$              19,946$               1,609$             92.5%
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                    -$                  
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                    -$                  

 
Total Expenditures -$                        -$                150,000$        150,000$            143,620$             6,380$             95.7%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                        -$                -$                -$                    -$                     (0)$                   
*see accompanying notes 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

SUMMER YOUTH EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)
(City of Miami Gardens / City of Opa-Locka)

 

 
 
 
 

95.7%
95.7%

 



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%
Revenues:

WIOA -$                     
TANF -$                     
FLCommerce 213,329$                 75,914$           289,243$             163,394$              125,849$          
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 -$                     -$                  
Other -$                     -$                  

Total Revenue 213,329$                 -$                 75,914$           289,243$             163,394$              125,849$          

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 213,329$                 75,914$           289,243$             163,394$              125,849$          56.5%
 

Adult Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   

 
Facilities Costs -$                     -$                   

 
 

Training & Support Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
             Allocated Funds -$                     -$                   
             Set Asides -$                     -$                  

 
Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                   
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                     -$                  
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                     -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                     -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                      

 
Total Expenditures 213,329$                 -$                 75,914$           289,243$             163,394$              125,849$          56.5%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

56.5%

 
 

 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

WIOA/WP - Hope Florida
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

 
 

56.5%



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%
Revenues:

WIOA -$                     
TANF -$                     
FLCommerce 237,780$         237,780$             124,389$              113,391$          
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 -$                     -$                  
Other -$                     -$                  

Total Revenue -$                         -$                 237,780$         237,780$             124,389$              113,391$          

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 237,780$         237,780$             124,389$              113,391$          52.3%
 

Adult Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   

 
Facilities Costs -$                     -$                   

 
 

Training & Support Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
             Allocated Funds -$                     -$                   
             Set Asides -$                     -$                  

 
Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                   
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                     -$                  
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                     -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                     -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                      

 
Total Expenditures -$                         -$                 237,780$         237,780$             124,389$              113,391$          52.3%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

Automated Monitoring Tool (WIS24A)
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

 
 

52.3%

52.3%

 
 



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA -$                    
TANF -$                    
FLCommerce 619,539$                619,539$             574,890$             44,649$           
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 -$                        -$                    -$                     -$                 
Other -$                    

Total Revenue 619,539$                -$                 -$                619,539$             574,890$             44,649$           

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 119,261$                119,261$             285,171$             (165,910)$        239.1%
 

Adult Services 449,785$                -$                 -$                449,785$             227,860$             221,925$         50.7%
Youth Services -$                        -$                 -$                -$                    -$                     -$                  

Set Aside -$                    -$                  

 
Facilities Costs 50,492$                  50,492$               61,859$               (11,366)$          122.5%

Training & Support Services -$                        -$                 -$                -$                    -$                     -$                 
             Allocated Funds -$                    -$                  
             Set Asides -$                    -$                  

Other Programs & Projects -$                        -$                 -$                -$                    -$                     -$                  
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                          -$                       
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                          -$                       
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                          -$                       
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                          -$                       
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                          -$                       
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                          -$                       

-$                          -$                       
Total Expenditures 619,539$                -$                 -$                619,539$             574,890$             44,649$           92.8%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                        -$                 -$                -$                    -$                     -$                 
*see accompanying notes 

 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

 
 

FSET
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

 

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

92.8%

 

92.8%



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA -$                     
TANF -$                     
FLCommerce 299,619$         299,619$             25,809$                273,810$          
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 168$                        168$                    168$                     -$                  
Other -$                     

Total Revenue 168$                        -$                 299,619$         299,787$             25,978$                273,810$          

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 32$                          57,677$           57,709$               24,351$                33,358$            42.2%
 

Adult Services 122$                        -$                 217,523$         217,645$             36$                       217,610$          0.0%
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   

 
Facilities Costs 14$                          24,419$           24,433$               1,591$                  22,841$            6.5%

 
 

Training & Support Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
             Allocated Funds -$                     -$                   
             Set Asides -$                     -$                   

 
 

Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                     -$                   
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                     -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                     -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                     -$                   

 
Total Expenditures 168$                        -$                 299,619$         299,787$             25,978$                273,810$          8.7%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

 

8.7%

 

8.6%
100.0%

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

 
 

RESEA
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA -$                     -$                  
TANF -$                     -$                  
FLCommerce 26,720$           26,720$               20,426$                6,294$              
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 3,739$                     11,762$           15,501$               15,501$                -$                  
Other -$                     -$                      -$                  

Total Revenue 3,739$                     -$                 38,482$           42,221$               35,928$                6,294$              

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 452$                        4,656$             5,109$                 7,572$                  (2,463)$             148.2%
 

Adult Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   

 
Facilities Costs 3,287$                     33,826$           37,113$               28,356$                8,757$              76.4%

 
Training & Support Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  

             Allocated Funds -$                     -$                   
             Set Asides -$                     -$                   

Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                   
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                     -$                   
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                     -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                     -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                      

 
Total Expenditures 3,739$                     -$                 38,482$           42,221$               35,928$                6,294$              85.1%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

 
 

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

76.4%

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

LOCAL VETERANS
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

85.1%

100.0%

 
 



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA -$                     
TANF -$                     
FLCommerce -$                     -$                      -$                  
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 16,638$                   4,356$             20,994$               5,567$                  15,428$            
Other -$                     

Total Revenue 16,638$                   -$                 4,356$             20,994$               5,567$                  15,428$            

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 2,013$                     527$                2,540$                 946$                     1,595$              37.2%
 

Adult Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   

 
Facilities Costs 14,625$                   3,829$             18,454$               4,621$                  13,833$            25.0%

 
 

Training & Support Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
             Allocated Funds -$                     -$                   
             Set Asides -$                     -$                   

 
Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                   
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                     -$                   
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                     -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                     -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                      

 
Total Expenditures 16,638$                   -$                 4,356$             20,994$               5,567$                  15,428$            26.5%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

 
 

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

DISABLED VETERANS
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

26.5%

26.5%

 
 



  

 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA -$                     
TANF -$                     
FLCommerce 1,068,848$              1,068,848$          1,068,848$       
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 1,030,225$              1,030,225$          367,138$              663,087$          
Other -$                     -$                  

Total Revenue 2,099,073$              -$                 -$                 2,099,073$          367,138$              1,731,935$       

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 404,071$                 404,071$             84,198$                319,874$          20.8%
 

Adult Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Set Aside -$                     -$                   

 
Facilities Costs 1,695,001$              1,695,001$          282,940$              1,412,061$       16.7%

 
 

Training & Support Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
             Allocated Funds -$                     -$                   
             Set Asides -$                     -$                   

 
 

Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                   
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                     -$                   
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                     -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                     -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                     -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                      

 
Total Expenditures 2,099,073$              -$                 -$                 2,099,073$          367,138$              1,731,935$       17.5%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

35.6%

 

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

 

0.0%

 

17.5%

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 

 

WAGNER PEYSER
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025



 BOARD 
APPROVED  

BUDGET 

 SAMS  
Adjustments 

 Contract 
Adjustments 

 AMENDED
BUDGET 

 ACTUAL 
(07/01/24 THRU 

02/28/25) 

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL -
AMOUNT 

 Std Rate= 67%

Revenues:
WIOA -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
TANF -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
FLCommerce 1,068,848$              -$                 326,339$         1,395,187$          46,236$                1,348,951$       
Second Year Allocation from FY 23-24 1,050,771$              -$                 16,118$           1,066,889$          388,374$              678,515$          
Other -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  

Total Revenue 2,119,619$              -$                 342,457$         2,462,076$          434,610$              2,027,465$       

Expenditures:

Headquarter Costs 406,570$                 -$                 62,860$           469,430$             117,066$              352,364$          24.9%
 

Adult Services 122$                        -$                 217,523$         217,645$             36$                       217,610$          0.0%
Youth Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

-$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
Set Aside -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

 
Facilities Costs 1,712,927$              -$                 62,074$           1,775,001$          317,509$              1,457,492$       17.9%

 
Training & Support Services -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  

             Allocated Funds -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
             Set Asides -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

Other Programs & Projects -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
        Big Brothers Big Sisters -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Opa-Locka) -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
        Apprenticeship Navigators -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
        Summer Youth Employment (City of Miami Gardens) -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
        MiDCPS Summer Youth Internship - 2023 -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   
        5000 Role Model Scholarships -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                   

 
Total Expenditures 2,119,619$              -$                 342,457$         2,462,076$          434,610$              2,027,465$       17.7%  

Balance of Funds Available -$                         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                      -$                  
*see accompanying notes 

 
 

3.3%
36.4%

 
17.7%

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

 
 

DEO**
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

YTD Operations (07/01/24-02/28/25)

 BUDGET VS. 
ACTUAL - 

RATE 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  9 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: GLOBAL TALENT AND COMPETITIVENESS COUNCIL UPDATE  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  BUILD DEMAND-DRIVEN SYSTEM W/ EMPLOYER ENGAGEMENT 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  National leader in an ROI-focused enterprise 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
N/A 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 

 

NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  10 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: PERFORMANCE COUNCIL UPDATE  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  INFORMATIONAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  STRONG WORKFORCE SYSTEM LEADERSHIP 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Strengthen workforce system  accountability 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
N/A 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 

 

NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  11 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: ACTION ITEMS  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  APPROVAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  HIGH ROI THROUGH CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  National leader in an ROI-focused enterprise 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
N/A 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 

 

ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  11A 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: NEW PROGRAM FOR AN EXISTING PROVIDER   
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  APPROVAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Executive Committee recommends to the Board the approval of a new Fiber Optics 
Installer training program, as set forth below. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  DEDICATED COMMITMENT TO YOUTH PARTICIPATION 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Emphasize work-based learning and training 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
In accordance with Section 122 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, regional workforce boards are 
authorized to independently develop criteria for the selection and eligibility of Training Providers and their 
programs. The South Florida Workforce Investment Board (SFWIB) has established processes to evaluate the 
programmatic capabilities of applicants. 
 
Following a thorough review, SFWIB staff recommends that the Council approve the following new training  
programs: 
 
1. FIber Optics Installer, Master Credential List ETAIN002 
 
2. Fiber Optics Technician, Master Credential List ETAIN010 
 
These additions will enhance the range of training opportunities available to our participants and align with the 
current demand in the workforce.  
 
FUNDING: N/A  
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 
 
NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SFWIB GLOBAL TALENT COMPETITIVENESS COUNCIL 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  11A 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: FIBER OPTICS INSTALLER TRAINING COHORT  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  APPROVAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Global Talent Committee recommends to the Board the approval to allocate an 
amount not to exceed $86,000 in Workforce System funding for a Fiber Optics Installer training cohort, as set forth 
below. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  BUILD DEMAND-DRIVEN SYSTEM W/ EMPLOYER ENGAGEMENT 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Develop specific programs and initiatives 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Mas Tec is one of the largest minority-controlled telecommunications and civil construction companies in the 
United States. Licensed in 32 states, Mas Tec employees over 22,000 people and in the state of Florida they are the 
second largest fiber optics company behind Verison. Fiber optic internet has emerged as the leading internet 
solution, offering unparalleled speed, stability, and capacity compared to traditional broadband options.  
 
With the growing demand for fiber optics there is an increased demand for talent trained in the installation and 
repair of fiberoptics cables and equiment. Mas Tec contacted Miami Dade College seeking trained individuals 
capable of meeting their employment demands. As an employer partner, Mas Tec has hired a multitude of students 
from Miami Dade's Fiber Optics training program.  
 
This 340 hour program consist of 40 hours of OSHA training, 140 hours of overhead construction, RF repair and 
fiber optic services training, and 160 hours of Fiber Optic Splicing and cable blowing. The starting wage for Fiber 
Optic Installers as Mas Tec is $20.00 to $24.00 dollars per hour. 
 
In accordance with Miami-Dade County Administrative Order No. 3-38, it is recommended that the SFWIB waive 
the competitive procurement process, as advised by the Executive Director, in the best interest of the SFWIB. A 
two-thirds (2/3) vote of a quorum present is required to waive the competitive procurement process and allocate up 
to $86,000 in Workforce System Funding to Miami-Dade College for the Fiber Optics Training Program. Staff 
recommends the approval to fund a cohort of 20 participants   
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

FUNDING: Workforce System Funding  
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 

 
NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  11C 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT AUDIT  
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  APPROVAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Finance and Efficiency Council recommends to the Board the approval to renew 
the contract for external independent auditing services with BCA Watson Rice LLP., as set forth below. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  STRONG WORKFORCE SYSTEM LEADERSHIP 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Strengthen workforce system  accountability 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On August 17, 2023, the Board approved a recommendation to enter into a contract with BCA Watson Rice LLP, 
following their selection as the top-ranked respondent to the South Florida Workforce Investment Board's (SFWIB) 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ). This RFQ solicited proposals from qualified Certified Public Accounting firms 
to perform a single audit of the SFWIB, in compliance with the Federal Single Audit Act, Office of Management 
and Budget Circular A-133, the Florida Single Audit Act, and the Department of Economic Opportunity Final 
Guidance 05-019. 
 
Subsequently, in October 2023, SFWIB executed a contract with BCA Watson Rice LLP for audit services for 
Program Year 2022–2023. The agreement includes an option to renew under the same terms for up to two additional 
one-year periods. 
 
BCA Watson Rice LLP has consistently delivered high-quality service and demonstrated professionalism and 
responsiveness in their engagement with our staff. Based on their performance, we recommend that the Financial 
Committee advise the Board to approve the renewal of the contract for audit services for Program Year 2024–2025. 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 
 
NO ATTACHMENT 



 
 

 
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  11D 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: NEW REGISTERED APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM   
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  APPROVAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Global Talent and Competitiveness Council recommends to the Board the approval 
of new Apprenticeship Training Programs, as set forth below. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  BUILD DEMAND-DRIVEN SYSTEM W/ EMPLOYER ENGAGEMENT 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Improve credential outcomes for job seekers 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
In accordance with Section 122 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, regional workforce boards are 
permitted to independently develop criteria for the selection and subsequent eligibility of Training Providers and 
programs. The South Florida Workforce Investment Board (SFWIB) developed processes to evaluate an applicant's 
programmatic capabilities.  
 
SFWIB staff completed the review process and recommends to the Council to approve the following new 
apprenticeship program.    
 

1. Award Excellence Training Institute Apprenticeship Program – GNJ (2025-FL-131124) 
• Electrician (RAPIDS Code 0159) 

 
This program will teach the apprentice to Create construction or installation diagrams, test and repair electrical 
equipment or systems to ensure proper functioning, install electrical components, equipment, or systems, inspect 
electrical or electronic systems for defects, fabricate parts or components, and estimate construction project costs.  
Participant will receive classroom training Introduction to Construction, Electrical Levels 1, Electrical Levels 2, 
Electrical Levels 3, and Electrical Levels 4.  
 

2. Miami Dade College Apprenticeship Program GNJ (2018-FL-71114) 
• Central Sterile Processing Technician (RAPIDS Code 1133CB) 

 
This program will teach the apprentice to deal with infection prevention, compliance and quality 
assurance, operation of medical equipment, operational responsibilities for decontamination, operational 
responsibilities for assembly, preparation, and packing, operational responsibilities for sterilization of 
reusable medical devices, and inventory maintenance, storage, and case cart production. Participants will 



 
 

also complete 21.66 credit with Miami Dade College that include courses: Introduction to Healthcare, 
Introduction to Healthcare Lab, Central Sterile Services Materials Management, and Central Sterile 
Processing Technician. 
 

3. Sanitas Apprenticeship Program INJ (2023-FL-117116 
• Medical Assistant (RAPIDS Code 1085CB) 
 

This program will include an OJT for the apprentice to experience hands-on experience in health system, 
body system, medical terminology, clinical procedures, clinical procedures, pharmacology, venipuncture, 
vaccines, and peripheral IV therapy. Participants will also complete classroom instructions that include 
medical terminology, clinical procedures (basics and advanced), medical communication skills, pre-visit 
planning, venipuncture, IV Access, medical administrative skills, regulation knowledge, and 
demonstrating age-specific competencies. 

 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 
 
NO ATTACHMENT 



Approved By: 
Rick Beasley, Executive Director 

 
 

   

POLICY 
NUMBER 100-25 

 

Title: Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 

Effective: 4/17/2025 Revised: N/A 

Supersedes: N/A Version: 1 

I. OF INTEREST TO 

This policy is of interest to American Job Center’s (AJC’s) that are responsible for 
engaging non-exempt recipients of Temporary Cash Assistance in required work activities. 

II. PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

CareerSource South Florida (CSSF) is mandated to fulfill the requirements of the 
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) Program by requiring that non-exempt 
recipients of Temporary Cash Assistance (TCA) work or be engaged in work activities and 
participate for a minimum number of hours per month as a condition of receiving ongoing 
TCA. 
The purpose of the TANF Program is to provide assistance to needy families. Florida has 
two definitions for “needy”:  
a. The first definition applies to a family applying to receive Temporary Cash Assistance 

for on-going basic needs.  Needy families with a gross income at or below 185% of 
the federal poverty level are eligible to receive TCA.   

b. The second applies to families seeking eligibility for a non-assistance service or 
activity. Needy families with a gross income at or below 200% of the federal poverty 
level are eligible for TANF non-assistance services. 

 

III. BACKGROUND 

The October 1996 Federal Act: The Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity 
Reconciliation Act (PRWORA), Public Law 104-193, eliminated the open-ended federal 
entitlement program, Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC), and replaced it 
with the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) welfare program. The TANF 
program changed the nation’s welfare system from the receipt of cash assistance as an 
entitlement to one that requires work in exchange for time-limited assistance. 
 
Federal law requires that all regions within the State of Florida meet a specified 
participation rate each fiscal year in order to receive full federal TANF funding.  In order to 
meet the work participation rate, each work-eligible individual must be engaged in a 

http://www.acf.dhhs.gov/programs/cb/laws/public_law/pl104_193.htm
http://www.acf.dhhs.gov/programs/cb/laws/public_law/pl104_193.htm
http://www.acf.dhhs.gov/programs/cb/laws/public_law/pl104_193.htm


Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 2 of 15 

countable work activity for at least the minimum number of hours required per week, 
averaged over the month.   
 
The Deficit Reduction Act (DRA), 2005, Public Law 109-171, includes provisions to 
reauthorize TANF.  It directs Secretary of Health and Human Services (HHS) to publish 
regulations to ensure consistent measurement of work participation rates, define work 
activities requirements, determine how to count and verify reportable hours and 
determines who is work-eligible. 
 
The Interim Final Regulations, 2006 implements the statutory changes enacted in the 
reauthorization of the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) program in the 
Deficit Reduction Act of 2005.   
The Final Regulations, 2008 implements changes to the Temporary Assistance for the 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) program required by the Deficit 
Reduction Act of 2005. 

 
IV. STATUTORY AUTHORITIES 

 
Florida Administrative Code 65A-4 – Temporary Cash Assistance 
Florida Statues Chapter 414 – Family Self Sufficiency  
Florida Statutes Statues 445 Sec. 024 – Workforce Services 
Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996, (PRWORA) 
TANF Work Verification Plan, 2012 

 

V. DEFINITIONS 

a. Career Advancement Program (CAP) formerly Welfare Transition (WT): 
Workforce services provided to applicants of TCA, and current or former recipients of 
TCA. 
 

b. Deferred: Referred by the Department of Children and Families for mandatory 
participation but it is determined that barriers exist that would temporarily impede the 
ability to comply. 

 
c. Domestic Violence: Any assault, aggravated assault, battery, aggravated battery, 

sexual assault, sexual battery, stalking, aggravated stalking, kidnapping, false 
imprisonment, or any criminal offense that results in the physical injury or death of 
one family or household member by another.  
 

d. Participant: An individual who has applied for and receives Temporary Cash 
Assistance, or for non-assistance TANF programs, a participant is a person 
determined eligible and enrolled based on the TANF purpose served.  
 

e. Public assistance: Benefits paid based on the Temporary Cash Assistance, food 
assistance, Medicaid, or optional state supplementation programs.  
 

f. Temporary Cash Assistance: Cash assistance provided under the state program 
certified under Title IV-A of the Social Security Act, as amended.  
 

https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ChapterHome.asp?Chapter=65A-4
https://www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2018/Chapter414
https://www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2021/Chapter445/All
https://www.congress.gov/bill/104th-congress/house-bill/3734
https://www.floridajobs.org/PDG/Memos/pdf/FSET_WT/WT_FinalRevisedVerificationPlan0207.pdf


Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 3 of 15 

g. Good Cause: Florida defines “good cause for failure to comply with work or 
alternative requirement activities” as the temporary inability to participate due to 
circumstances beyond the participant’s control. Good cause reasons include, but are 
not limited, to the following: hospitalization, medical emergency, or death of an 
immediate family member; natural disaster; court appearance; temporarily caring for 
a disabled family member when the participant provided verification of the need for 
care and alternative care is not available; or domestic violence. 

 
 

VI. POLICY 

a. Work Registration 
i. Individuals who apply for TCA and are not exempt must complete the work 

registration process as a condition of eligibility for TCA. F.S. 414.095 requires 
that an individual must meet certain eligibility requirements before receiving 
services or TCA, except that a participant shall be required to register to work 
and engage in work activities in accordance with F.S. 445.024. 
 
As part of the work registration process, participants will receive an overview of 
the Career Advancement Program (CAP), their opportunities and 
responsibilities, and a complete assessment of their needs. In the event the One 
Stop Service Tracking (OSST) System is not functioning, AJC staff must result 
to a manual process in order to assist client with completing work registration. 
Once the applicant has completed the work registration process DCF refers the 
work-eligible applicant to the American Job Center (AJC) for mandatory 
participation.  

 
Work-eligible individuals mean an adult (or minor child head-of-household) 
receiving assistance under TANF or a separate state program or a non-recipient 
parent living with a child receiving such assistance (usually a child-only case) 
unless the parent is:   

 
1. A minor parent and not the head-of-household or spouse of the 

head-of household;  
2. An alien who is ineligible to receive assistance due to his or her 

immigration status; 
3. On a case-by-case basis, a recipient of Supplemental Security 

Income (SSI) benefits; and 
4. A parent providing care for a disabled family member living in the 

home, who does not attend school on a full-time basis, provided that 
the need for such care is supported by medical documentation. 
 

ii. Co-enrollment into Wagner Peyser (WP) and Workforce Innovation 
Opportunity Act (WIOA)  

 
Non-Exempt recipients for cash assistance that are referred to the CAP must 
be co-enrolled into Wagner Peyser (WP) and WIOA.  If a participant is 
temporarily deferred from participation at the time of referral the participant shall 
be co-enrolled on the deferral end date.   

 
 



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 4 of 15 

 
 

iii. Intake Assessments & CLIFF 
 

Immediately upon completion of Work Registration, AJC designees shall 
perform intake assessments, and Career Identifier and Financial Forecaster 
(CLIFF) for each participant in order to determine the participant’s skills, 
aptitudes, interests, barriers to self-sufficiency, and most appropriate work 
activity. Intake Assessments include: 
 

1. Intake Assessments conducted via Systems designated by the 
SFWIB. 

2. Budget Wizard 
3. CLIFF 
4. IRP 
5. Learning Needs 

 
iv. Individual Responsibility Plan (IRP) 

 
A plan must be developed for each participant within thirty (30) calendar days 
of a new, re-open, reassigned or end applicant case alert. It shall be jointly 
developed with AJC designee and the participant.  Career goals, objectives and 
plan steps shall be developed based upon work registration needs assessment 
results and any additional assessments of the participant’s skills, work history 
or employability. 

 
Note: The initial assessments and CLIFF must be initiated within 10 calendar days for each 
participant. This process must be completed within 30 days of a new, re-open, reassigned or end 
applicant case alert. 

 
 

b. Families 
 

i. Types of Families 
 

1. Single Custodial Parent with a Child age 5 and under  
2. Single Custodial Parent with a child 6 and older 
3. Two-Parent Family not receiving federally funded childcare 
4. Two-Parent Family receiving federally funded childcare 
5. Two-Parent Minor Heads of Household  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 5 of 15 

 
 
 
 

 
ii. Participation Hours by Families 

 
 
 

 
1. Single Parent with a child age 5 and under (Public Assistance– 

PA)   
 

a. Each participant shall be required to participate in a work 
activity for a minimum of 87 hours per month in which 87 
hours must be in a core activity. 
 

2. Single Parent  with a child age 6 and older  (Public Assistance– 
PA)  
 

a. Each participant shall be required to participate in a work 
activity for a minimum of 130 hours per month in which 87 
hours must be in a core activity. 
 

3. Two-Parent (Unemployed Parent-UP)  
 

a. If the family is not receiving subsidized childcare, the family 
shall be required to participate in a work activity for a 
minimum of 152 hours per month in which 130 of the 
required hours must be in a core activity. If one parent is 
unable to participate they may be assigned to a non-
countable activity.  

  

Families Minimum Monthly  
Required Hours 

Minimum Monthly 
Core Hours 

Single Custodial Parent 
with a Child age 5 and 
under 

87 87 

Single Custodial Parent 
with a child 6 and older 

130 87 

Two-Parent Family NOT 
receiving federally 
funded childcare 

152 130 

Two-Parent Family 
receiving federally 
funded childcare 

252 217 

Two-Parent Minor 
Heads of Household 
(Note:  all work activities 
are core activities) 

87 87 



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 6 of 15 

 
i. The assignment of non-countable activity should be 

employed to support families in addressing goals or 
overcoming barriers that cannot be resolved through 
participation in a countable activity. Childcare 
services shall not be provided to families in which one 
parent is engaged solely in a non-countable activity. 
Career advisors are responsible for monitoring and 
enforcing adherence to this policy. 
 

ii. An Alternative Responsibility Plan (ARP) must be 
created for the parent in a two-parent family who has 
been assigned to a non-countable activity. The ARP 
should clearly define the participants status and 
outline the specific steps they are required to 
complete during the time placed in their activity. 

 
b. If the family is receiving subsidized childcare and neither 

parent is disabled, the family shall be required to participate 
in a work activity for a minimum of 252 hours per month in 
which 217 of the required hours must be in a core activity.  
 

4. Minor Head of Household (Teen Parent -TP)  
 

a. A Two Parent family head of household under the age of 20 
must be engaged in a work activity for a minimum of 87 
hours per month. Both parents must participate in a work 
activity for the monthly minimum number of hours in order 
for hours to count in the participation rate. 
 

5. Two-Parent Household with one parent referred (Single UP) 
 

a. In order to count in the All Families Rate and the Two-Parent 
Family Rate at least one parent must be assigned to and 
participate for 152 hours per month.  

 
c. Work Activities  

 
i. There are twelve (12) Work activities:  
 

1. Unsubsidized Employment (Core): Unsubsidized Employment is 
full or part-time employment in the public or private sector that is not 
subsidized by TANF or any other publicly funded program, which 
includes the following:  
 

a. Recipients whose employers claim a tax credit for hiring 
economically disadvantaged workers; 

  



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 7 of 15 

 
b. Labor in exchange for services or other amounts (rent, 

utilities, etc.); and  
 

c. Self-employment.: is a countable form of unsubsidized 
employment. To earn participation credit for hours of self-
employment, a participant must provide documentation that 
details gross income minus business expenditures as 
substantiated by copies of money orders, check, and other 
forms of proof income and expenditures. Self-attestation is 
not acceptable as documentation. 

 
i. Participation hours are assigned based on the 

number of hours that result from dividing the gross 
income minus business expenses (as verified by the 
documentation presented) by minimum wage (state 
or federal--whichever is higher).   
 

2. Subsidized Private Sector Employment (Core): Subsidized 
Private Sector Employment is supervised in the private sector where 
the employer receives a subsidy from federally funded program to 
offset some or all of the wages and benefits paid to a TANF 
participant.  
 

a. Subsidized Private Sector employment is limited to 12 
months lifetime and shall be assigned in 6-month intervals. 

 
3. Subsidized Public Sector (Core): Subsidized Public Sector 

Employment is supervised in the public or not-for-profit sector where 
the employer receives a subsidy to offset the cost of wages and 
benefits paid to a TANF participant.  
 

a. Subsidized Public Sector employment is limited to 12 
months lifetime and shall be assigned in 6-month intervals. 

 
• NOTE: Upon entering a verifcation of employment, an exit survey, and CLIFF 

assessment must be administered.  
 

4. Job Search/Job Readiness (Core): Job Search and Job 
Readiness activities are those that include the act of seeking or 
obtaining employment, as well as instruction on how to seek 
employment for participants whose barriers have been removed.  
Substance abuse and mental services may also be considered as 
part of the job search and job readiness activity.    

 
a. In-House/Remote Job Readiness (Employment 

Preparation): In House/Remote job readiness must be part 
of a structured activity that requires daily supervision.  
These sessions are designed to improve an individual’s job 



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 8 of 15 

seeking and retention skills, and provides support for job-
seeking activities that are directly related to preparing for or 
finding employment may be conducted in-person or 
remotely.  It will not include looking for childcare, housing or 
other non-work activities.  
 

i. All participants must log into systems designated by 
SFWIB during each visit to the center. A record of the 
visit and the service the participant recieves is 
recorded. The participant must be assigned to the job 
search activity to receive credit for participation in all 
classroom activities. 
 

ii. Participants are expected to apply for jobs that match 
their qualifications, ensuring their resume and skills 
align with the positions they are pursuing. All job 
searches must align to the occupation of interested 
listed on their IRP 
 

iii. The AJC designee must verify at least 10% of all job 
searches for each participant, and record the 
verification using the CSSF Job Search Report. 

 
Note: If the participant is not hired within 90 
days of the start date of the activity in OSST, a 
re-assessment is required. An appointment 
letter documenting the re-assessment 
appointment must be included in participant 
case file and a case note must be entered in 
OSST. 

 
 

b. Substance Abuse and Mental Health (SAMH): Some 
individuals that are not able to get and keep a job may 
benefit from substance abuse/mental health treatment or 
rehabilitation services. These services may be considered 
part of the job search and job readiness activity once the 
individual is determined to be in need of SAMH treatment by 
a substance abuse and mental health professional.   
 

i. The medical or mental health professional who 
determines treatment is necessary must be licensed 
and/or board certified to practice in the State of 
Florida (per F.S. 414.0655).  

 
 

c. Time Limit for Job Search/Job Readiness activities: 
Participation in job search and job readiness activities is 
limited to four consecutive weeks and no more than 360 



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 9 of 15 

hours in a rolling twelve months. If an hour is reported on 
the JPR screen in any week for the job search activity it will 
be counted as one week of the four consecutive weeks 
allowed.   

i. A participant who has hours reported for 
participation on the JPR screen for four 
consecutive weeks must be removed from the 
activity for a period of one week—seven 
consecutive days. After seven days, the 
participant may be reassigned to the Job Search 
activity as necessary.  

 
 

5. Community Service Program (Core): Community Service is 
limited to projects that serve a useful community purpose in health, 
social service, environmental protection education, urban & rural 
development, recreation, public facilities, public safety and childcare.  
Community Service is an applicable activity to demonstrate “job 
specific” skills, and the participant does not have post-secondary 
education or gained employment skills.  It is also appropriate for a 
participant that wants to: 

 
a. Gain or improve their employability skills with a community 

organization while benefiting the community.  
  

b. Have an opportunity to receive work–based learning in 
accordance with their employment goals.  

 
c. Participate in community service activities while they await 

work authorization documents for placement into paid 
employment or training. 
   

6. Work Experience (Core): Work Experience is a work activity 
performed in return for welfare combined with food stamps.  This 
activity provides an individual with an opportunity to acquire the 
general skills, training, knowledge, and work habits necessary to 
obtain employment.  It should be used to improve employability of 
those who cannot find unsubsidized employment.  It is also an 
appropriate work activity for participants who lack preparation for, or 
experience in the workforce.  And, it should provide work based 
learning in accordance with their employment and shall be designed 
to move the participant from the work experience to paid 
employment.   

 
a. Home Based Worksites for Community Service or Work 

Experience activities: a private home-based business is 
defined as any business or commercial activity that is 
conducted, or proposed to be conducted from property that 
is zoned for residential use or is clearly incidental or 
secondary to the use of the dwelling unit for residential 



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 10 of 15 

purpose.  Community Service or Work Experience activities 
with a private home-based business is not authorized.    

 
Providing Childcare (Core): Participants may provide childcare 
services to an individual who is participating in a Community 
Service Program.  The number of hours that is credited to the 
participant providing the childcare services is based on the 
number of hours that the participant is scheduled for the 
community service activity.  
 

7. Vocational Education and Training (Core): Vocational Education 
and Training is organized educational programs that are directly 
related to the preparation of individuals for employment in current or 
emerging occupations requiring other than a baccalaureate or 
advanced degree.  Vocational Education and Training programs 
should be limited to activities that give individuals the knowledge and 
skills to perform a specific occupation.  The use of funds for 
vocational education and training programs is permitted, contingent 
upon available funding.  

 
Vocational Education and Training must be vocation in nature and 
must be provided by a State approved education or training 
organization.  This may include basic skills if embedded in a 
vocational program and short term.  It does not include remediation 
of basic skills through adult basic education.  Any necessary 
remediation should be completed before a participant is referred to 
Vocational education and training. ESOL is not an acceptable 
stand-alone activity. 

 
a. Self-Initiated Education: a participant enrolled in a self-

initiated education independent of CSSF at the time of 
referral may receive participation credit only if the participant 
is attending and progressing satisfactorily in training that is 
provided in a state approved course of study.  

b.  Distance Learning: Courses in which students accessing 
classroom training via the internet without having to 
physically report to a classroom training is considered 
distance learning.   
 
 

8. On-the Job Training (OJT) (Core): OJT is paid training in the public 
or private sector that is provided by an employer to an eligible 
participant while engaged in a job that allows the participant to 
acquire knowledge or skills essential to the full and adequate 
performance on the job.  Infrequently, OJT may be combined with 
customized training. Normally a worker would not be simultaneously 
utilizing OJT and customized training services, however, it is 
possible that a worker might be a participant in OJT and 
simultaneously be a participant in off-the-job customized training 



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 11 of 15 

such as classroom training. Combining these services requires prior 
CSSF approval.   

 
9. Satisfactory Attendance at a Secondary School (Adult Basic 

Education) and General Education Diploma (GED) (Core Plus): 
Satisfactory Attendance at a Secondary School is regular 
attendance, at a secondary school or in a course of study leading to 
a certificate of general equivalence, in the case of a recipient who 
has not completed secondary school or received such a certificate.  
This includes ABE, GED and high school credit programs that 
provide opportunities for an individual to achieve a diploma either 
through the GED testing program or the completion of high school 
credits required for graduation. 

 
10. Education Directly Related to Employment (Core Plus): If a 

participant has not received a high school diploma or GED (s)he may 
receive credit for hours by participating in education related to a 
specific occupation, job or job offer.  This includes courses designed 
to provide the knowledge and skills for specific occupation or work 
settings, but may also include adult basic education and ESOL.  
Where required as a pre-requisite for employment by employers or 
occupation, this activity may also include education leading to a 
General Education Development (GED) or high school Equivalency 
diploma. 

 
11. Job Skills Training directly Related to Employment (Core Plus): 

Job Skills Training directly Related to Employment is training or 
education for job skills required by an employer to provide an 
individual with the ability to obtain employment or to advance or 
adapt to the changing demands of the workplace.  It may include 
literacy training or language instruction when it is EXPLICITLY 
focused on skills needed for employment or combined in a unified 
whole with job training, customized training to meet the needs of a 
specific employee or it general training that prepares an individual 
for employment Post-secondary education that leads to a bachelor’s 
or advanced degree may count as job skills training, if it is direct 
related to employment. It must be required by the employer and it 
must provide the participant with the ability to obtain employment 
and/or advance in a position under the following categories: 

 
Training Agreement and Supervision for education activities:  a 
signed OJT agreement is required which details full-time 
employment, daily supervision, hourly wage, training hours, training 
days, start date, end date, and the participant, authorized employer 
representative and AJC designee signatures.   

 
Employment Verification for education activities:  employment 
verifications must include the contact information such as the 
employer’s name; date contacted, phone number, employee work 



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 12 of 15 

days/hours, wage rate employment start date and the name of the 
AJC designee who verified the employment. 

 
ii. Countable Work Activities 

 
1. TCA recipients not exempted from work activities must participate in 

work activities based on the minimum required hours for the family 
type.  The minimum required monthly hours must be met by requiring 
each participant to participate in a countable work activity for a 
minimum number of hours per month. There are two types of work 
activities: core and core–plus.  Both work activities are considered 
countable. The core work activities may be used individually as 
stand-alone activities to satisfy the required work requirements. 
Core-plus activities are countable if used in combination with a core 
activity.  The core-plus hours count towards participation if the 
required core hours are met.  There are nine (9) core activities and 
three (3) core plus activities. 
 

2. Types of Countable Work Activities 
 

a. Core work activities may be used individually as stand-
alone or in combination with core-plus activities to satisfy 
the require work requirements.  Participants cannot be 
assigned a work activity for more than a maximum of 40 
hours per week.    
 

b. Core plus work activities must be assigned in combination 
with core activities, and the core hours must be met in order 
for the hours to count towards participation.  Each activity is 
to be identified in the One Stop Service Tracking System 
(OSST) under the Skill Development tab to report 
participation.  

 
Core Work Activities Core Plus Work Activities 

1. Unsubsidized Employment 1. Satisfactory Attendance at      
Secondary School 

2. Subsidized Private Sector 
Employment 

2. Education Directly Related to 
Employment 

3. Subsidized Public Sector 
Employment 

3. Job Skills Training  

4. Job Search and Job Readiness  
5. Community Service Program  
6.  Work Experience  
7.  Providing Childcare  
8.  Vocational Training  
9. On-the-Job Training (OJT)  

 
  



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 13 of 15 

 
 

iii. Verifying Employment for employment activities: Verification of 
employment is required and must be obtained prior to entering the employment 
into OSST. The CSSF Employment Verification and/or automated confirmation 
documentation of employment maintained in recognized databases such as 
The Work Number (TALX) are acceptable forms of supporting documentation.  
The AJC designee may also verify employment by contacting the employer 
directly using the CSSF Collateral Contact form, providing that all other 
acceptable means of verification have been attempted.  

 
iv. Projecting Hours of Employment for employment activities: Using the 

“project forward hours” provision, the AJC designee will report projected hours 
of participation for up to six months.  The projected hours are based on the 
actual hours that are documented on an employer statement of wages and 
hours and/or pay stubs submitted by the employed individual.  Hours may be 
projected forwarded for up to six months beginning the closure date, and after 
the receipt of a full pay cycle, i.e. weekly, bi-weekly or monthly.   

 
v. Employment Follow-ups: Employment follow-ups must be conducted for 

participants that are employed, at 30, 60, 90, 180 and 365-day intervals while 
the participant is employed. The follow up must be entered in OSST.   

 
vi. Alternative Responsibility Plan (ARP)  

Some participants may have circumstances that prevent them from 
participating in traditional work activities and they must be assigned to 
alternative activities to satisfy the required program participation.  Their 
participation will be monitored using an Alternative Responsibility Plan    

 
vii. Case Notes 

 
The AJC designee must ensure that there is sufficient information that is 
clear and concise and also documents the progression of the participant 
via case notes in OSST. The case notes are accessible for review to 
anyone with the proper authorization to the system. Therefore, every effort 
must be made to protect the participant’s privacy, while continuing to record 
the development of the participant. There shall not be any reference to test 
results nor the medical condition of the participant.  Also, abbreviations 
should be used only if they are commonly used and are easily understood 
by all system users . 

 
Note: In instances where a participant may be the victim of domestic violence, a separate, hard 
copy case file must be maintained in a secure location and marked “confidential”.  Additionally, 
the addresses, telephone numbers, and social security numbers of a domestic violence victim are 
exempt from the open public records’ requirement and should be kept confidential except as 
allowed by statute. Information that may jeopardize the safety of the domestic violence victim and 
the victim’s children must be maintained in the separate file. The case notes should refer the 
reader to the confidential hard copy case file without making reference to the nature of the issue. 

 



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 14 of 15 

viii.  Participation Rate 
 

The Florida Commerce measures each region within the State of Florida on a 
monthly basis to determine if regions have met the required participation rate. 
The AJC designated staff must enter accurate and verifiable (valid) data into 
OSST by the 10th of the following month to document the participant’s 
completed work activity.  

 
1. Participants Excluded from the Participation Rate: 

a. Teen parents who are in school are excluded (not required 
to participate) during school breaks and holidays; 

b. Employed participants; and 
c. Participants who are subject to sanction (currently 

sanctioned) are not counted toward the participation rate.  
Note:  Currently sanctioned means the cash has been 
removed from the family. 

d.  Individuals who are exempt from the time limit pursuant to 
Florida Statutes, Section 414.105 (2015).  
 

ix. Participation Rate Requirements  
 

1. There are two participation rate requirements that an AJC provider 
must meet. These are known as the “all-family” and the “two-parent” 
family participation requirements.  
 

a. All-Family Participation Rate: The “all-family” rate is that 
50% of all families containing an adult or minor head of 
household must be engaged in countable work activities for 
a minimum average number of hours per month. The hours 
vary by family type.    
 

b. Two-parent Family Participaiton Rate: The “two-parent” 
family participation rate is that 90% of two-parent families 
must be engaged in countable work activities for a minimum 
number of hours per month. 

 
2. If the participant is subject to sanction for more than 3 months in the 

preceding 12 months, the participant will not be removed from the 
participation rate calculation. 

 
d. Holiday/Excused Absence paid Activities: Participation hours may be granted for 

any holiday that an employer designates as a “paid holiday” for its employees.  
 

Holiday policy for unpaid work activities:  Participation hours may be granted if 
the participant is scheduled on the following holidays observed by a work activity 
provider: 

  



Career Advancement Program (CAP) Work Activities 
POL 100-25  

Page 15 of 15 

 
Excused absence for paid activities:  Participation credit may be granted for 
scheduled hours a participant misses due to illness or other good cause for which the 
individual was paid.  

 
Excused absence for unpaid hours/activities: Participation hours may be excused 
up to 80 hours per participant during the preceding 12 month period and attributed 
towards participation. However no more than 16 hours per month may be granted. 
 
Excused absences and holidays will be recorded and tracked.  The AJC designee 
must manually maintain and track the dates and hours using a tracking document in 
the case file.  The document will record the dates of the excused holiday, the total 
number of absent hours per month (no greater than 80).  Prior to crediting participants 
with the hours, AJC designee will verify that the individual is scheduled to be in the 
activity. 

 
e. Crediting Hours for Participation: To ensure that participation rates are met, it is 

critical that work eligible individuals are assigned to an appropriate work activity and 
that they are engaged for the minimum required hours.  

 
f. Documentation used to credit hours for participation on the JPR screen, must meet 

the following criteria: 
 

i. Original documentation with the required signatures must be secured;  
ii. Documents must have a date stamp upon receipt and are maintained in the 

participant’s electronic case file to support all entries, regardless of when the 
documents are obtained; 

iii. Total hours are collected and recorded each week; 
iv. Documentation cannot be altered – no scratch out, white out, alterations; and 
v. Documents that are translated must be attached to the signed English version. 

 
g. Failure to Participate: The failure or refusal of the participant to become fully 

engaged in work or barrier removal/management activities may result in a termination 
of benefits. The program applies full family penalties when participants fail to meet 
program requirements without good cause in accordance with s. 414.065, F.S.  

 

VII. EXCEPTIONS 

Exceptions to this policy, or any part thereof, must be approved in writing by the SFWIB 
Executive Director in accordance with applicable laws. 



 
 

 
 

SOUTH FLORIDA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 
DATE: 4/17/2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  11E 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: CAREER ADVANCEMENT PROGRAM WORK ACTIVITES POLICY 
APPROVAL   
 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  APPROVAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Global Talent and Competitiveness Council recommends to the Board the approval 
of the Career Advancement Program Work Activities Policy, as set forth below. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  IMPROVE SERVICES FOR INDIVIDUALS W/ BARRIERS 
 
STRATEGIC PROJECT:  Emphasize work-based learning and training 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Career Advancement Program (CAP) has been established to meet the requirements of the Temporary 
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) program by ensuring that non-exempt recipients of Temporary Cash 
Assistance (TCA) engage in designated, countable work activities. 
 
This policy provides comprehensive guidance on allowable work activities, outlines registration procedures, and 
sets clear expectations for participation. It also supports dual enrollment opportunities through the Workforce 
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), expanding access to employment and training services. Key components 
of the CAP policy include: 
 
• Eligibility and Registration: Clarifies the registration process and eligibility criteria for TANF participants. 
 
• Assessment and Planning: Utilizes tools such as the CLIFF Dashboard to assess participant skills, barriers, and 

career goals, and informs the development of Individual Responsibility Plans (IRPs). 
 
• Work Activity Requirements: Defines activity assignments and participation hour benchmarks based on family 

composition. 
 
• WIOA Co-Enrollment: Encourages coordinated service delivery to maximize training and employment 

outcomes. 
 
• Compliance Standards: Establishes protocols for documentation, verification, and case management to ensure 

regulatory adherence. 
 



 
 

• Monitoring and Accountability: Details procedures for tracking participation hours and maintaining compliance 
with both federal and state TANF guidelines. 

 
The policy also outlines the assignment of core and core-plus activities, permissible excused absences, and standards 
for employment verification. These measures support the region’s goal of meeting federally mandated Work 
Participation Rates (WPRs) and maintaining full federal TANF funding. 
 
Aligned with the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA), Chapters 414 and 
445 of the Florida Statutes, and the Florida TANF Work Verification Plan, this policy aims to ensure consistent 
service delivery, strengthen accountability, and improve outcomes for program participants. 
 
The South Florida Workforce Investment Board (SFWIB) recommends approval of the Career Advancement 
Program policy to advance these objectives and support TANF participants on their path to employment and self-
sufficiency. 
 
FUNDING: TANF 
 
PERFORMANCE: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENT 


	SFWIB Agenda Cover_April 2025
	SFWIB Agenda Item #2_Public Comment
	SFWIB Agenda Item #3_Chairman's Report
	SFWIB Agenda Item #4A_Executive Director's Report
	SFWIB Agenda Item #5_Community Presentations
	SFWIB Agenda Item #5A_Greater MIami Chamber of Commerce
	SFWIB Agenda Item #5B_Service Code Monitoring Tool
	SFWIB Agenda Item #6_Consent Agenda Items
	SFWIB Agenda Item #6A_Meeting Minutes - February 20, 2025_DRAFT
	SFWIB Agenda Item #7_Executive Committee Update
	SFWIB Agenda Item #8_Finance and Efficiency Council Update
	SFWIB Agenda Item #8A_Financial Report (4.17.25)
	SFWIB Agenda Item #8A_Financial Report Accompanying Notes 4.17.25
	SFWIB Agenda Item #8A_Financial Report Financial Statements Summary February 2025 For Agenda
	AGENCY
	ADULT
	DW
	Rapid Res
	YOUTH
	TANF
	Layoff Aversion-WIR25 & WPB25A
	SYEP
	WIS24 & WPB24N WPB25N  - HOPE 
	WIS24A Monitoring Tool
	 FSET_SNAP
	RESEA
	LV
	DV
	WP
	DEO

	SFWIB Agenda Item #9_Global Talent and Competitiveness Council Update
	SFWIB Agenda Item #10_Performance Council Update
	SFWIB Agenda Item #11_Action Items
	SFWIB Agenda Item #11A_New Training Programs
	SFWIB Agenda Item #11B_Fiber Optic Training Cohort
	SFWIB Agenda Item #11C_External Auditing Firm Renewal
	SFWIB Agenda Item #11D_New Apprenticeship Training Programs
	SFWIB Agenda Item #11E_Attachment CAP Work Activities Policy
	5. Community Service Program (Core): Community Service is limited to projects that serve a useful community purpose in health, social service, environmental protection education, urban & rural development, recreation, public facilities, public safety ...
	a. Gain or improve their employability skills with a community organization while benefiting the community.
	b. Have an opportunity to receive work–based learning in accordance with their employment goals.
	c. Participate in community service activities while they await work authorization documents for placement into paid employment or training.
	6. Work Experience (Core): Work Experience is a work activity performed in return for welfare combined with food stamps.  This activity provides an individual with an opportunity to acquire the general skills, training, knowledge, and work habits nece...
	a. Home Based Worksites for Community Service or Work Experience activities: a private home-based business is defined as any business or commercial activity that is conducted, or proposed to be conducted from property that is zoned for residential use...
	Providing Childcare (Core): Participants may provide childcare services to an individual who is participating in a Community Service Program.  The number of hours that is credited to the participant providing the childcare services is based on the num...
	7. Vocational Education and Training (Core): Vocational Education and Training is organized educational programs that are directly related to the preparation of individuals for employment in current or emerging occupations requiring other than a bacca...
	Vocational Education and Training must be vocation in nature and must be provided by a State approved education or training organization.  This may include basic skills if embedded in a vocational program and short term.  It does not include remediati...
	a. Self-Initiated Education: a participant enrolled in a self-initiated education independent of CSSF at the time of referral may receive participation credit only if the participant is attending and progressing satisfactorily in training that is prov...
	b.  Distance Learning: Courses in which students accessing classroom training via the internet without having to physically report to a classroom training is considered distance learning.
	8. On-the Job Training (OJT) (Core): OJT is paid training in the public or private sector that is provided by an employer to an eligible participant while engaged in a job that allows the participant to acquire knowledge or skills essential to the ful...
	9. Satisfactory Attendance at a Secondary School (Adult Basic Education) and General Education Diploma (GED) (Core Plus): Satisfactory Attendance at a Secondary School is regular attendance, at a secondary school or in a course of study leading to a c...
	10. Education Directly Related to Employment (Core Plus): If a participant has not received a high school diploma or GED (s)he may receive credit for hours by participating in education related to a specific occupation, job or job offer.  This include...
	11. Job Skills Training directly Related to Employment (Core Plus): Job Skills Training directly Related to Employment is training or education for job skills required by an employer to provide an individual with the ability to obtain employment or to...
	Training Agreement and Supervision for education activities:  a signed OJT agreement is required which details full-time employment, daily supervision, hourly wage, training hours, training days, start date, end date, and the participant, authorized e...
	Employment Verification for education activities:  employment verifications must include the contact information such as the employer’s name; date contacted, phone number, employee work days/hours, wage rate employment start date and the name of the A...

	SFWIB Agenda Item #11E_CAP Work Activities Policy



